
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   September 11, 2020 

TO:    MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, September 16, 2020, Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 5:45 pm in the 
board room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa).  If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323-6535 (w) or 707-3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

8. Resolution 09-20-03 - Approval of Extension to Revenue Sharing with Respect to the
Collection of Solid Waste Agreement – Action for Approval
The annual agreement identifies the revenue share owed to ASI, Waste Connections
and Waste Management for the collection of bulk waste, extra waste, and appliances
through Metro Waste Authority’s Large and Extra Item Sticker program. Staff
recommends approval.

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

9. Resolution 09-20-04 – Approval of P-59 Material Recovery Facility Construction
Manager Agent – Action Item
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) put out an RFP for Construction Management-Agency
(CMa) Services for construction of the material recovery facility (MRF). The RFP was
prepared and distributed to four entities: Estes Construction, Cambridge Companies,
Graham Construction Company, and Turner Construction Company. Two firms
submitted proposals, which were reviewed by Christensen Development, ISG, and MWA
staff. Additionally, interviews were held with the two groups that submitted proposals.
Staff recommends approval of Graham Construction Company as CMa for the MRF.

10. Resolution 09-20-05 – Set Public Hearing for Material Recover Facility Subcontractors
on October 21, 2020 – Action Item
A public hearing will be held by Metro Waste Authority (MWA) on proposed bid
packages for the construction of the material recovery facility (MRF) at 5:45 pm local

Page 1 of 58



time on Wednesday, October 21, 2020, at Central Office. At said time and place, any 
interested person may appear and file objections thereto. Written objections may also be 
filed in advance at the following address: 300 E. Locust Street, Ste.100, Des Moines, 
Iowa 50309. The bid-opening date is scheduled for October 15, 2020. Staff recommends 
approval. 

 
11. Resolution 09-20-06 – Approval of 2013 CAT D8T Dozer Rebuild at Metro Park East 

Landfill – Action Item 
Metro Park East Landfill utilizes dozers for pushing garbage at the working face to the 
landfill compactor, for spreading cover material, and for excavating cover soil. Currently, 
the DOZ514 is a 2013 CAT D8T landfill dozer with 14,198 hours. The warranty offered 
on this rebuild is a 10-year, 10,000-hour powertrain and 1-year unlimited hours on all 
other repairs, for $414,253.20. The dozer rebuild was budgeted in FY19/20 for 
$400,000. Funds for the unbudgeted amount of $14,235.20 are available in the FY19/20 
Capital Equipment Fund. Staff recommends approval.  
 

12. Resolution 09-20-07 – Approval of Rate Increase for Electronic Waste Disposal – Action 
Item 
Metro Waste Authority was informed in mid-June that Goodwill would no longer accept 
recycled electronics disposed of through the Hazardous Waste Program. Staff 
conducted a cost analysis and determined an updated, increased price structure is 
necessary to cover the cost of electronic waste (e-waste) disposal through A-Tec 
Recycling. Staff recommends approval. 

 
 

 

Page 2 of 58



 
 

 
 
 

Board of Directors 
2020 Calendar Year 

 
 

Mark Holm 
Chair 

 
Ron Pogge 
Vice-Chair 

 
 
 

 
Dean O’Connor 

Altoona 
   

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

 
Wes Enos 
Bondurant 

 
John Edwards 

Clive 
 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

 
Steve Allen 

Elkhart 
 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

 
Tom Cope 
Johnston 

 
Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

 
Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

 
Dean Cooper 
Pleasant Hill 

 
Rob Sarchet 

Polk City 
 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

 
Gerald Lane 

Runnells 
 

Ron Pogge 
Urbandale 

 
Steve Gaer 

West Des Moines 
 

Threase Harms 
Windsor Heights 

 
 
 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 

September 16, 2020 
 

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 
 

Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting in person may do so at 
the MWA Central Office, where seats will be arranged to allow for social 
distancing. Masks will be available and are mandatory for public guests. 

Additional CDC recommendations will be implemented. 
 

Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Regular Agenda 
 
3. Public Forum 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 
 
4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 8 

 
5. Consideration of Minutes July 15, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting – 

Action for Approval 
 

6. Resolution 09-20-01 – Consideration of July 2020, Monthly Expenditures – 
Action to Receive and File 

 
7. Resolution 09-20-02 – Consideration of August 2020, Monthly Expenditures – 

Action for Approval 
 

8. Resolution 09-20-03 – Approval of Extension to Revenue Sharing with Respect 
to the Collection of Solid Waste Agreement – Action for Approval  

 
END CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Items 9 through 12 

 
9. Resolution 09-20-04 – Approval of P-59 Material Recovery Facility Construction 

Manager Agent – Action Item 
 

10. Resolution 09-20-05 – Set Public Hearing for Material Recovery Facility 
Subcontractors on October 21, 2020 – Action Item  

 
11. Resolution 09-20-06 – Approval of 2013 CAT D8T Dozer Rebuild at Metro Park 

East Landfill – Action Item 
 
12. Resolution 09-20-07– Approval of Rate Increase for Electronic Waste Disposal 

– Action Item 
 
13. Director’s Report 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

MWA Board Meeting 
September 16, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

14. Chair’s Report 
 
15. General Board Discussion and Other Business 
 
16. Correspondence 

 
17. Adjournment 

 
 
October Executive Finance Meeting: October 7, 2020, MWA Central Office, 300 
E. Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 
 
October Board Meeting: October 21, 2020, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust 
Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 
 
 

 

 



 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 

Des Moines, Iowa 50309 
515-244-0021 

 
 

July 15, 2020 Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Mark Holm, chair, 
called the July 15, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:45 pm. A 
quorum was present. This meeting was primarily conducted electronically due to federal 
and state government recommendations in response to COVID-19 pandemic conditions. 

 
Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance 
Dean O’Connor, Altoona 
Mark Holm, Ankeny 
John Edwards, Clive 
Joe Gatto, Des Moines 
David Gisch, Grimes 
Rhonda Martin, Johnston 
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville  
Dean Cooper, Pleasant Hill 
Rob Sarchet, Polk City 
Tom Hockensmith, Polk County 
Gerald Lane, Runnells 
Ron Pogge, Urbandale 
Bret Hodne, West Des Moines 
Threase Harms, Windsor Heights 

 
2. Approval of Regular Agenda 

Moved by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to approve the July 15, 2020, board meeting 
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 

 
3. Public Forum 

There were no requests to address the Board. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion 
unless someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration: 

 
4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 7 

Moved by Clive, seconded by Polk County, to approve the Consent Agenda, items 4 
through 7. Motion carried unanimously by voice.  
 

5. Consideration of Minutes of June 17, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board 
Meeting – Action for Approval 
  

6. Resolution 07-20-01 - Consideration of May 2020, Financial Statement – 
Action to Receive and File 

 
7. Resolution 07-20-02 - Consideration of June 2020, Monthly Expenditures –  

Page 5 of 58



Action for Approval 
 
END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
8. Director’s Report 

Michael McCoy, executive director, reported after final analysis of potential sites for a 
material recovery facility (MRF), Metro Waste Authority’s Grimes site is the best option 
due to schedule constraints, as well as additional factors. Upon final recommendation of 
this location, a few variables should be considered. The location will require additional 
site requirements to meet city code, and it is recommended to optimize land use through 
a design that that supports all services offered at the site.  

 
There are several site enhancements and requirements that play a factor in the creation 
and conceptualization of a recycling and disposal campus in Grimes: 

 Site Enhancements: Increased square footage (SF) for tip floor (HDR 
feasibility study provided a 54,000 SF floor, Metro Waste Authority (MWA) 
MRF will include 103,000 SF tip floor); increased thickness of concrete; 
increased SF of processed material storage. 

 City Site Requirements: Due to the proximity of our location to the 
HWY-141 overlay, the city has specific requirements for the building, as 
well as the development of the site. 

 Education Facility: The region’s first recycling education center would 
promote proper recycling habits with a behind-the-scenes view of the 
facility’s operations, along with a multi-dimensional learning experience. 
The education facility will allow participants to interact with and 
understand the material recovery process. 

 Household Hazardous Waste Building: The permanent hazardous 
waste drop-off building is a result of increased demand for proper 
hazardous waste disposal in the western suburbs. This would replace the 
site’s existing satellite, providing a more efficient, effective, and safe 
collection of material.  

 Maintenance Shop: One, central on-site maintenance facility would 
provide internal support for the Metro Northwest Transfer Station, the 
hazardous waste building, the material recovery facility, and the 
education center.  

 
These enhancements will be included in the FY 21/22 budget presented to the Board in 
November. Additionally, staff will continue to seek grant dollars to supplement costs. 
   
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, introduced Kellie Heiken-Stoops as MWA’s new Human 
Resources Manager.  

 
The August executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust 
Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, August 5, 2020, at 12:00 pm. 

 
The August board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, 
Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, August 19, 2020, at 5:45 pm. 
 

9. Chair’s Report 
Mark Holm, chair, reported Metro Waste Authority will continue to conduct board 
meetings virtually. 

 

Page 6 of 58



10. General Board Discussion and Other Business 
John Edwards, Clive, requested an update on the cart swap for the four new 
communities. McCoy reported the transition has been challenging, but staff are working 
hard to finalize the swaps and appreciate the patience and support the four communities 
have demonstrated.  
 
Bret Hodne, West Des Moines, reported successful use of shingles mixture on a gravel 
road, with additional plans to incorporate in the future.   

 
11. Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 6:45 pm. 
 
 
 
__________________________________   _____________________________ 

                 Michael McCoy, Executive Director                       Mark E. Holm, Chair 
 

 

Page 7 of 58



Page 8 of 58



Page 9 of 58



Page 10 of 58



Page 11 of 58



Page 12 of 58



Page 13 of 58



Page 14 of 58



Metro Waste Authority Board  
Monthly Board Meeting 

September 16, 2020 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 8 

ITEM:  
Approval of Extension to Revenue Sharing with Respect to the Collection of Solid Waste 
Agreement. 
 
SUMMARY:  
This extension extends the Revenue Sharing with Respect to the Collection of Solid Waste 
Agreement to June 30, 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
This annual agreement identifies the revenue share owed to ASI, Waste Connections, and 
Waste Management for the collection of bulky waste, extra waste and appliances through Metro 
Waste Authority’s Large and Extra Item Sticker program. It has been adjusted to reflect the four 
new MSW cities, and has been reviewed by the haulers. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the approval of Extension to Revenue Sharing with Respect to the Collection 
of Solid Waste Agreement. 
 
HISTORY/PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
This is the seventh annual renewal of this agreement between Metro Waste Authority and the 
three solid waste haulers. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A - Agreement for Revenue Sharing with Respect to the Collection of Solid Waste. 
 
CONTACT: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

Page 15 of 58



AGREEMENT FOR REVENUE SHARING WITH RESPECT TO  
THE COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE  

 
 This AGREEMENT FOR REVENUE SHARING WITH RESPECT TO THE COLLECTION 
OF SOLID WASTE (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 16th day of September 2020, 
by and among Metro Waste Authority, a joint powers entity organized pursuant to Chapter 28E 
of the Iowa Code (“MWA”), Waste Connections of Iowa, Inc., an Iowa corporation (“WCI”), 
Waste Management of Iowa, Inc., an Iowa corporation (“WMI”) and Ankeny Sanitation, Inc., 
an Iowa corporation (“ASI”).  
 

RECITALS 
 

A. On or around June 16, 2010, MWA and WCI entered into a certain Agreement for the 
Collection of Solid Waste (the “WCI Agreement”), whereby WCI agreed to provide solid 
waste collection services for certain residents within the MWA Service Area (as defined 
therein) of Participating Member Communities (as defined therein).  
 

B. On or around March 16, 2011, MWA and WMI entered into a certain Agreement for the 
Collection of Solid Waste (the “WMI Agreement”), whereby WMI agreed to provide solid 
waste collection services for certain residents within the MWA Service Area (as defined 
therein) of Participating Member Communities (as defined therein).  
 

C. On or around December 10, 2012, MWA and ASI entered into a certain Agreement for the 
Collection of Solid Waste (the “ASI Agreement”; together with the WCI Agreement and the 
WMI Agreement, the “Collection Agreements”), whereby ASI agreed to provide solid waste 
collection services for certain residents within the MWA Service Area (as defined therein) 
of Participating Member Communities (as defined therein).  
 

D. In accordance with Section 7.3.7 of each of the Collection Agreements, each of WCI, WMI 
and ASI (collectively, the “Contractors”) have agreed to collect Appliance (as defined in 
the Collection Agreements) and Bulky Waste Collection (as defined in the Collection 
Agreements) pursuant to certain requirements and compensation as mores specifically 
set forth therein.  
 

E. MWA and each Contractor hereby desire to enter into this Agreement in order to set fifth 
the revenue sharing by and among MWA and each Contractor for the collection of 
Appliances and Bulky Waste Collection.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 

  In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the parties 
agree as follows:  

1. Defined Terms. Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the definition as set 
forth in the Collection Agreements.  

 

Page 16 of 58



2. Collection Agreements. Each of the parties hereto agrees and acknowledges that 
each of the Collection Agreements and the terms of them shall continue in full force and effect. In 
the event of a conflict between the provisions of the any of the Collection Agreements and this 
Agreement, the provisions of such Collection Agreement shall prevail.  

 
3. Term. This Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021. This 

Agreement may be mutually extended from year to year upon written agreement of the parties.  
 
4. Section 7.3.7 of the Collection Agreements. Each of the parties hereto agrees and 

acknowledges that it has agreed to the following provision in Collection Agreement (“Section 
7.3.7”):  

 

“7.3.7    Separate Bulky Waste/Appliance Collection Charges 

The cost to households for Bulky Waste collection will be $1 for an extra 
bag or box that does not fit in the cart and $5 for all Bulky Waste items 
that do not fit in the cart.  Appliances will cost households $35 
each.  MWA will sell Bulky Waste stickers to residents of the 
Participating Member Communities as follows: 

 One extra bag or box sticker                          = $  1.00 
 Bulky Waste item sticker                                = $  5.00 
 

The extra bag must have a capacity no greater than thirty-five (35) 
gallons or equivalent size box.  An appliance must have a total of seven 
(7) $5 Bulky Waste item stickers applied. 

MWA will retain issuance fees of $0.10 for each $1.00 sticker and $0.20 
for each $5.00 sticker sold for the provision of the stickers and 
administration.  Contractor will be paid the remaining sticker revenue 
received by MWA on a quarterly basis to cover the cost to the 
Contractor for the collection and disposal of the Bulky Wastes and 
Appliances.  Contractor will be paid based on the revenue as received 
by MWA which may be prior to the actual service being used by 
households.  Sticker fees and revenue to the Contractor will not be 
subject to adjustment and will remain the same throughout the 
Agreement term and any extensions.” 

5. Revenue/Revenue Sharing. As a result of the Bulky Waste Collection and 
Appliance collection as set forth in Section 7.3.7, MWA will pay each Contractor, after retention 
of the issuance fees by MWA as set forth in Section 7.3.7, the remaining sticker revenue received 
by MWA on a quarterly basis to cover the cost to Contractors for the Bulky Waste Collection and 
Appliance collection (the “Revenue”). MWA and each Contractor hereby agree that the Revenue 
shall be divided and distributed among each Contractor in accordance with the distribution as set 
forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. MWA and each Contractor hereby agree and acknowledge that 
the distribution as set forth in Exhibit A is a fair, true and accurate distribution of the Revenue 
among the Contractors.  

Page 17 of 58



 
6. Default. In the event that any party determines that another party has defaulted in 

the performance of its obligations hereunder, the aggrieved party may declare that default has 
occurred and give notice thereof to the defaulting party. Notice of default shall be given in writing, 
shall specify the nature of the default and the provision of this Agreement involved, and shall 
specify what action is required of the defaulting party to correct the default.  The defaulting party 
shall have thirty (30) days from the date of its receipt of the notice of default to correct the default.  
If at the end of said thirty (30) day period the default has not, in the opinion of the aggrieved party, 
been corrected, that party may thereupon take whatever action it determined is necessary or 
appropriate to enforce or obtain performance of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
7. Notices. All notices, consents, approvals, communications, and requests of or to 

any of the parties to this Agreement shall be in writing, delivered to the person designated below, 
by United States mail or in hand delivery, at the indicated address unless otherwise designated 
in writing.  
 For MWA:  
 Name: Michael McCoy 
 Title: Executive Director 
 Address: 300 East Locust St., Ste 100 
 City, State: Des Moines, IA 50309 
 
 For WMI:  
 Name: Ammon Taylor 
 Title: Municipal Marketing Manager 
 Address: 201 SE 18th St. 
 City, State: Des Moines, IA 50317 
 
 For WCI:  
 Name: Robert Gill 
 Title: District Manager 
 Address: 4705 NE 22nd St. 
 City, State: Des Moines, IA 50313 
 
 For ASI:  
 Name: Andrew Larson 
 Title: Vice President 
 Address: 7002 SE Deleware Ave 
 City, State: Ankeny, IA 50021 

 
8. Indemnity. Each Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless MWA, its officers, 

agents, servants and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, 
claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees to the extent resulting from a 
willful or negligent act or omission of such Contractor, its officers, agents, servants, and 
employees in the performance of this Agreement; provided, however, that no Contractor shall be 
liable for any suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and 
attorneys’ fees solely arising out of the willful or negligent act or omission of MWA, its officers, 
agents servants or employees.  

Page 18 of 58



 
9. Amendments. All provisions of this Agreement shall be strictly complied with and 

conformed to by Contractors; and no amendment to this Agreement shall be made except upon 
written consent of the parties, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 

10. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

 
11. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason held to be illegal 

or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision entered into, each of which 
shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid portion were not contained herein. Nor 
shall any such illegality or invalidity affect any legal or valid application thereof, and each such 
provision shall be deemed to be effective in the manner and to the full extent permitted by law.  

 
12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa.  
 
13. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by any party hereto without the 

express written consent of the other party hereto.  
 
14. Further Assurances. Each party hereby agrees to execute and deliver such 

additional instruments and documents and to take all such other action as the other party may 
reasonably request from time to time in order to effect the provisions and purposes of this 
Agreement.  
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]  

Page 19 of 58



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, the undersigned, by our duly authorized agents, affix our 
signatures as of the date first written above.  
 
 
METRO WASTE AUTHORITY 
 
By:        
Name: Michael McCoy 
Title: Executive Director 
 
 
WASTE CONNECTIONS OF IOWA, INC. 
 
By:        
Name:  Robert Gill 
Title:  District Manager 
 
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT OF IOWA, INC. 
 
By:        
Name: Kent Harrell 
Title:  Director of Public Sector 
 
 
ANKENY SANITATION, INC. 
 
By:        
Name:  Andrew Larson 
Title:  Vice President 
 
  

Page 20 of 58



 

 Exhibit A 

    

 Fiscal Year 2020‐2021 

  Quarterly Revenue Share For MWA by and among 

  Waste Connections of Iowa, Inc., Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. and Waste Management of Iowa, Inc. 

    

   

 100% OF REVENUE TO WASTE CONNECTIONS OF IOWA, INC. 

   Cappel's Ace Hardware ‐ 5003 EP True Parkway, West Des Moines 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ 1990 Grand Avenue, West Des Moines 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ Mills Civic, 555 S 51st Street, West Des Moines 

   Hy‐Vee Drugstore ‐ 1010 60th Street, West Des Moines 

   Vine Food & Liquor ‐ 2704 Vine Street, West Des Moines 

    

 100% OF REVENUE TO ANKENY SANITATIONI, INC. 

   Cappel's Ace Hardware ‐ 1120 Sunset Drive, Norwalk 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ 7101 University Avenue, Windsor Heights 

   City of Windsor Heights 

   City of Norwalk 

   City of Clive 

   City of Grimes 

   City of Johnston 

   City of Polk City 

   Fareway ‐ 1101 S. 5th Street, Polk City 

City of Bondurant 

Johnston Hardware 

   Price Chopper ‐ 5440 NW 86th St, Johnston 

    

 86% OF REVENUE TO WASTE MANAGEMENT OF IOWA, INC.;   14% OF REVENUE TO ANKENY SANITATION, INC. 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ 108 8th Street SW, Altoona 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ 4815 Maple Drive, Pleasant Hill 

    

 80% OF REVENUE TO WASTE CONNECTIONS OF IOWA, INC.;   20% OF REVENUE TO ANKENY SANITATION, INC.  

   True Value ‐ 100 Grand Avenue, West Des Moines 

   Fareway ‐ 329 Grand Avenue, West Des Moines 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ West Lakes, 1725 Jordan Creek Parkway, West Des Moines 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ 1700 Valley West Drive, West Des Moines 

   Hy‐Vee ‐ 1005 E. Hickman Road, Waukee 

   Menards ‐ Clive 12000 Hickman Road 

    

 100% OF REVENUE TO WASTE MANAGEMENT OF IOWA, INC. 

   City of Altoona 

   City of Pleasant Hill 

   City of Runnells 

   City of Mitchellville 
 

Page 21 of 58



Metro Waste Authority Board  
Monthly Board Meeting 

September 16, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

ITEM:  
Approval of P-59 Material Recovery Facility Construction Manager Agent. 
 
SUMMARY:  
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) put out an RFP for Construction Management-Agency (CMa) 
Services for construction of the material recovery facility (MRF). The RFP was prepared and 
distributed to four entities: Estes Construction, Cambridge Companies, Graham Construction 
Company, and Turner Construction Company. Two firms submitted proposals, which were 
reviewed by Christensen Development, ISG, and MWA staff. Additionally, interviews were held 
with the two groups that submitted proposals. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Although Estes submitted an overall lower price, MWA recommends hiring Graham 
Construction Company as CMa for the MRF. In addition to their portfolio of similar projects and 
glowing reputation across central Iowa, Graham offers a 10% overall price guarantee that they 
will complete the project in accordance with the schedule, which is imperative for the MRF. 
 
Fee Breakdown: 

- Graham  
o Fee: 2.85% $527,250 + $630,113 = $1,157,363 

- Estes 
o Fee: 2.9% 536,500 + $432,236 = $986,736 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the approval of hiring Graham Construction Company as the P-59 Material 
Recovery Facility Construction Manager Agent. 
 
BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
There are no additional budget requirements, as Graham Construction Company’s overall fee is 
comparable to the cost estimate included in the previously approved budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – CMa Agreement between MWA and Graham Construction Company 
Attachment B – Graham Construction Proposed Fee 
 
CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6519 

Page 22 of 58



Page 23 of 58



Page 24 of 58



Page 25 of 58



Page 26 of 58



Page 27 of 58



Page 28 of 58



Page 29 of 58



Page 30 of 58



Page 31 of 58



Page 32 of 58



Page 33 of 58



Page 34 of 58



Page 35 of 58



Page 36 of 58



Page 37 of 58



Page 38 of 58



Page 39 of 58



Page 40 of 58



Page 41 of 58



Page 42 of 58



Page 43 of 58



Page 44 of 58



Page 45 of 58



Page 46 of 58



Page 47 of 58



Page 48 of 58



Page 49 of 58



Page 50 of 58



Graham Proposed Fee:

We propose that our construction management fee for this project will be 2.85% of the cost of the work. This fee does not include 
the cost of general conditions, reimbursable costs, or project management supervisory personnel. The following reimbursable matrix 
is based off a 13 month schedule starting after Board Approval on September 16, 2020 and going until November 1, 2021.  A small 
Preconstruction Fee has been included for the time period between the CM selection and board approval for us to review drawings, 
budgets, and prepare to take the project out to bid. 

CM Reimbursables Included in 
Fee Excluded

PROJECT MANAGEMENT STAFFING $549,578 
Senior Project Manager - 20 hrs/wk @ $110hr X
Field Engineer - 40 hrs/wk @ $75hr X
Project Coordinator - 8 hrs/wk @ $65hr X
Superintendent - 40 hrs/wk @ $95hr X
Field Operations Manager X
Project Executive X
Home Office Expense X
Admin Travel X

JOBSITE REIMBURSABLES $77,015 
Office Trailer, Furniture & Set Up X
Office Trailer Electrical X
Computers X
Office Supplies X
Postage & Deliveries X
Printing X
Bid Documents X
Drinking Water X
Project Signage X
Internet Service & Monthly Charges X
Copy Machine/Printer X
Cell Phones & Tablets X
Project Management Software (Procore) X
Safety Program X
Closeout Out Documents X

PRECONSTRUCTION $3,520 
Preconstruction & Estimating X

TOTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS  $630,113 

30Page 51 of 58

AdamD
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Metro Waste Authority Board  
Monthly Board Meeting 

September 16, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 10 

ITEM:  
Set Public Hearing for Material Recovery Facility Subcontractors on October 21, 2020. 
 
SUMMARY:  
A public hearing will be held by Metro Waste Authority (MWA) on proposed bid packages for the 
construction of the material recovery facility (MRF) at 5:45 pm local time on Wednesday, 
October 21, 2020, at Central Office. At said time and place, any interested person may appear 
and file objections thereto. Written objections may also be filed in advance at the following 
address: 300 E. Locust Street, Ste.100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309.  
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Pre-construction bid documents for the MRF will be released September 17, 2020, seeking bids 
from qualified and experienced subcontractors for eleven divisions of construction, which 
include site/utilities, footings/slabs, landscaping, paving, precast/steel, roofing/flashing, 
glazing/exterior panels, general construction, elevator, mechanical, and electrical. 
 
The bid-opening date is scheduled for October 15, 2020. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the approval of setting a public hearing for material recovery facility 
subcontractors on October 21, 2020. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Notice of Public Hearing 
 
CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6519 

Page 52 of 58



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, FORM 
OF CONTRACT AND COST ESTIMATIONS FOR THE MATERIAL 

RECOVERY FACILITY IN GRIMES, IOWA 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
METRO WASTE AUTHORITY  

 
 

 Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held at 5:45 p.m., October 21, 
2020 at the Metro Waste Authority Central Office, 300 E. Locust Street – Suite 100 – Des 
Moines, Iowa 50309. 
 
DESCRIPTION: The work includes, but is not limited to, construction of 103,000 sf 
facility to house material recycling equipment along with a two-story office building that 
includes, locker room, break room, maintenance space, and an education center. 
 
 Notice to Bidders was circulated in accordance with Iowa law, with bids to be 
opened and assessed on October 15, 2020. 
 

The public hearing will receive comments on the proposed construction of the 
Metro Waste Authority Material Recovery Facility and to review and approve plans, 
specifications, form of contract, and estimated construction costs for the improvements. 
In addition, proposals may be acted on by the MWA Board at this hearing, or at such later 
time and place as may be fixed. MWA reserved the right to award the Contract at the time 
of said meeting or to reject any or all bids as it shall deem in the best interest of MWA. 
Any individual may file written comments and/or be heard at said hearing. Additional 
information can be obtained through the Administration Office (515) 244-0021. 
 
 Bidding Documents may be viewed at the office of the Construction Manager, 
Graham Construction Company, 421 Grand Ave, Des Moines, IA 50309. For more 
information on reviewing the construction documents contact Adam Douglas at (515) 
645-9526.  
 
 
 

Page 53 of 58



Metro Waste Authority Board  
Monthly Board Meeting 

September 16, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 11 

ITEM:  
Approval of 2013 CAT D8T Dozer Rebuild at Metro Park East Landfill. 
 
SUMMARY:  
Unit DOZ514 is a 2013 CAT D8T landfill dozer with 14,198 hours. 
 
Ziegler is the recommended vendor for the rebuild priced at $414,253.20. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Dozers are utilized at Metro Park East Landfill (MPE) for pushing garbage at the working face to 
the landfill compactor, for spreading cover material, and for excavating cover soil. MPE currently 
has a fleet of 3 CAT D8T’s for this purpose. 
 
The warranty offered on this rebuild is a 10-year, 10,000-hour powertrain, and 1-year unlimited 
hours on all other repairs. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the Ziegler rebuild for $414,253.20 
 
BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The dozer rebuild was budgeted in FY19/20 for $400,000. Funds for the unbudgeted amount of 
$14,235.20 are available in the FY19/20 Capital Equipment Fund, funded in replacement of a 
budgeted Litter VAC Unit. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Ziegler Rebuild Proposal 
 
CONTACT: 
Brian Krueger, disposal operations manager, 515.333.4447 

Page 54 of 58



Page 55 of 58



Page 56 of 58



Page 57 of 58



Metro Waste Authority Board  
Monthly Board Meeting 

September 16, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 12 

ITEM:  
Approval of Rate Increase for Electronic Waste Disposal. 
 
SUMMARY:  
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) was informed in mid-June that Goodwill would no longer accept 
recycled electronics disposed of through the Hazardous Waste Program. Staff conducted a cost 
analysis and determined an updated, increased price structure is necessary to cover the cost of 
electronic waste (e-waste) disposal through a different vendor. Specifically, the increase will 
cover TV and computer monitor e-waste recycling costs. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The proposed fee to recycle a TV, including computer monitors, with a screen size 39” or less 
will increase from $15 to $20. Likewise, the proposed fee to recycle a TV greater than 39” will 
increase from $25 to $30. All computers and computer-related equipment (i.e. printers, 
keyboards, scanners) will now be charged $0.50 per pound. The proposed price increase will 
affect disposal rates at both Hazardous Waste Drop-Off facilities, Metro Park East Landfill, and 
Metro Park West Landfill. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the rate increase for electronic waste disposal. 
 
BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
If the proposed rates are not implemented, MWA would absorb the unbudgeted increased 
disposal costs. 
 
CONTACT: 
Kyle Fischer, MHWD facility manager, 515.333.4431 

Page 58 of 58


	Board Memo - pgs. 1-2
	Agenda - pgs. 3-4
	Agenda Item 5: July 2020 Minutes - pgs. 5-7
	Agenda Item 6: July Expenditures - pgs. 8-10
	Agenda Item 7: August Expenditures - pgs. 11-14
	Agenda Item 8: Revenue Sharing - pgs. 15-21
	Agenda Item 9: MRF CMa - pgs. 22-51
	Agenda Item 10: Public Hearing Notice - pgs. 52-53
	Agenda Item 11: Dozer Rebuild - pgs. 54-57
	Agenda Item 12: E-Waste Rate Increase - pg. 58



